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NEWS RELEASE

FOR RELEASE

Bowman and Miller, P.C. today released an audit report on Tama Coﬁnty, Iowa.

The County had local tax revenue of $23,232,304 for the year ended June 30, 2009,
which included $1,165,689 in tax credits from the state. The County forwarded $15,336,385 of the
local tax tevenue to the townships, school districts, cities and other taxing bodies in the County.

The County retained $7,895,419 of the local tax revenue to finance County operations, a -
' 4.9 percent increase from the prior year. Other revenues include charges for services of $1,460,869,
operating grants, contributions and restricted interest of $4,987,211, capital grants, contributions,
and restricted interest of $409,164, local option sales tax of $548,739, unrestricted investment
earnings of $126,832 and other general revenues of $13,539.

Expenditures for County operations totaled $14,387,765, a 2.7 percent decrease from the
prior year. Expenditures included $6,316,159 for Roads and Transportation, $2,679,163 for Publlc
Safety and $1,849,704 for Mental Health.

A copy of the audit report is available for review in the County’s Auditor’s office, in the
Office of the Auditor of State and on the Auditor of State’s web 511:6 at
http://auditor.iowa.gov/reports/reports.htm.
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For professional services as follows:

- Hours - _Rate Amount

 Senior Accountant and review 182§ 7659 $ 13,940.00
Staff Accountants - 132 - 5500 - 7,260.00
Office Staff, Clerical - 10 . 3000 __ 30000

Total services . .. ... . ... ©$ 21,500.00
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Officials of Tama County:

~ We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Tama County, lowa, as of and for the year ended June
30, 2009, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of Tama County’s management Our responsibility is to
express- op1n10ns on thesc ﬁnanc1a1 statements based ori our audit. :

We conducted our audit in accordance with U 8. gcnerally acccptcd audmng standards. and the

- standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goyvernment Auditing Standards, issued by the -
" Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance dbout whether the financial staternents are free of material misstaterent, An

~ audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as cvaluatmg the overall ﬁnanc1a1 statement presentation. We believe our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our cplmons o

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Tama County at June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, .for the year then ended in ccnfomlit'y with U.8. generally accepted acccunting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standard , we have also issued our report dated
January 8, 2010 on our consideration of Tama County’s 1nterna1 control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results.of that testing and not fo provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfonncd in
accordance with Goyvernment Auditing Standards and shculd be ccns'.ldcrcd in assessing the results of our

“audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 4 through 10
and 39 through 42 are not required parts of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and

- presentation of the required supplementary mfcrmatwn We did not audit the mfcrmatmn and express no

opinion on it. -




Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Tama County’s basic financial statements. We previously audited, in accordance with

* the standards referred to in the second paragraph of this report, the financial statements ot the eight years =~

ended June 30, 2008 (which are not presented herein) and expressed unqualified opinions on those financial
statements. Other supplementary information included in Schedules 1 through 6, including the Schedule of
Bxpenditures of Federal Awards required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes of ,
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Bowman and Miller, B.C. |

January 8, 2010




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Tama County provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of its financial statements. This
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.
‘We encourage readers to consider this information in conjunctlon with the County’s ﬁnanclal
statements, which follow.

- 2009 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» Revenues of the County’s govemmental activities remained virtually unchanged from fiscal 2008
to fiscal 2009. General revenues increased approximately $275,000 and charges for services
increased approximately $42,000; however, operating grants, contributions and restricted interest
decreased approximately 3:261 000 and capital grants and contributions decreased approximately
$91,000. :

e Program expenses of the County’s governmental activities were 2.7%, or approximately
$400,000, less in fiscal 2009 than in fiscal 2008, Public safety and legal services expenses
decreased approximately $115,000 and roads and transportation expenses decreased =~

_ approximately $307,000,

» The County’s net assets mcreased 2.2%, or apprommately $571,000, from June 30 2008 to June
. 30,2009, : . _

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other inforrnation as follows:

Management’s Dlscussmn and Analysis introduces the basm financial statements and prov1des an
analy‘ucal overview of the County’s financial act1v1tles

The Government-wide Financial Statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of
~ Activities. These provide information about the act1v1t1es of Tama County as:a whole and present an
overall view of the County s finances.

The Fund Financial Statements tell ~how governmental services were financed in the short term as
well as what remains for fiture spending. Fund finaneial statements report Tama County’s operations
in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the most
significant funds, The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which
Tama County acts solely as an agent or custodian for the benefit of those outside of County
government (Agency Funds). -

Notes to Financial Statements prov1de additional information essential to a full understandmg of the
~data provided in the basic ﬁnanmal statements.

Requlred Supplementary Information further explains and supports the financial statements witha
comparison of the County’s budget for the year. '

Other Supplementary Information provides detailed information about the nonmajor governmental
and the individual Agency Funds: In addition, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
provides details of various federal programs benefiting the County.




REPORTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

" Government-wide Financial Statements

One of the most important questions asked about the County’s finances is, “Is the County as a whole
better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities report information which helps answer this question. These statements mclude-
all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources
measurement focus, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of
the current year’s revenues and expenses are takon into account, regardless of when oash is received
ot paid. o

The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as “net assets”. Over time, increases or decreases in the County s net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is Improvmg or
deteriorating. : :

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
 statement for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods.

The County’s governmental activities are presented in the Sta’tement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities. Governmental activities include public safety and legal services, physical healthand
social services, mental health, county environment and education, roads and trapsportation,
governmental services to residents, administration, interest on long-term debt and non-program
activities. Property tax and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

' Fund Financial Statements
The County has three kinds of funds:

- 1) Governmental funds account for most of the County’s basic services. These focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. The governmental funds include: 1) the General Fund, 2) the Special Revenue Funds, such
- as Menta] Health, Rural Services, and Secondary Roads and 3) the Capital Projects Fund, These funds

are reported using the current financial resources measurément focus and the modified acerual basis
of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash, The governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed, short-term view of the County’s
general governmental operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information
helps determine whether there are more or fewet ﬂnanc:lal resources that can. be spent in the near
fiture to finance the County’s programs

The required finaneial statements for governmental funds include a balance sheet and a statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances.

2) Proprietary funds account for the Cou.oty' s Internal Service, Employee Group Health
Fund. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the County’s various functions.

The required financial statements for proprietary funds include a statement of net assets, a statement
of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets and a statement of cash flows.




3) Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trust or agency capacity for others which
cannot be used to support the County’s own programs. These ﬁduciary funds include Agency Funds
that account for drainage districts, emergency management services and the County Assessor, to
name a few. : -

The required'ﬁnahcial statement for fiduciary funds is a statement of fiduciary assets and liabilities.

Reconciliations between the government-wide financial statemients and the fund financial statements
follow the fund financial statements. '

GOYERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL AN ALY.SIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position. The
County’s combined net assets were virtually unchanged from a year ago, increasing from $26.5
million to $27 million. The analysis that follows focuses on the changes in net assets of '
governmental activities,

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

(Expressed in Thousands)
"~ June 30,
o : : _ 2009 . 2008
Current and other assets : $ 16,805 15,140
Capital assets o _ e 18,995 - 20,058
Total assets : _ _ R 35800 35,198
Long-term liabilities ' o 518 423
Other liabilities ' - 8,202 8,266
: Total liabilities ' o - 8,720 8,689
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net : ' S
of related debt . L 18,963 19,997
Restricted g 6,333 - 4815
Unrestricted ' : - : : - 1,784 1,697
- Total pet assets - 8 27,080 26,509

" Net assets of Tama County’s governmental activities increaséd 2.2%_($26.5 million compared o
© $27 million). The largest portion of the County’s net assets is invested in capital assets (e.g:, land,

infrastructure, buildings and equipment), less the related debt. The debt related to the investment in
capital assets is liquidated with resources other than capital assets. Restricted net assets represent
resources subject to external restrictions, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation on how they

- can be used. Unrestricted net assets — the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day

operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or other legal
requirements - increased from approxnnately $1,700,000 at June 30, 2008 to approximately
$1,800,000 at the end of this year, at increase of 5.1%. The change is due to an

increase in unrestricted revenues pnmanly relating to tax collections and a decrease in expenditures
for roadway maintenance and capital projects. The County purchased no new major roadway -
equipment in 2009, .




Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

Year ended June 30,
2009 2008
Revenues:

Program revenues: . _ _
Charges for service $ 1,460,869 1,418,957
- Operating grants, contributions and restricted interest 4987211 5,247,860
Capital grants, contributions and restricted interest 409,164 499,774

General revenues: :

- Property tax 6,959,089 6,593,009
Interest and penalty on property tax - 66,489 75,760
State tax credits 387,193 388,054
Local option sales tax 548,739 547,461
Unrestricted investment earnings 126,832 200,417
Other general revenues 13,539 22,178
* Total revenues 14,959,125 14,993 470

Program expenses. :

 Public safety and legal services - 2,679,163 2,794,596
Physical health and social services - 1,358,463 1,378,116
Mental health _ 1,849,704 1,793,996
County environment and education. " 590,555 480,445

" Roads and tra:nsportatmn - 6,316,159 6,623,262
Governmental services to res1dents 483,490 482,506
Administration : 1,108,031 . 1,231,334
Non-program = 2,200 3,427

Total expenses 14,387,765 14,787,682

Increase in net agsets o - 571,360 205,788

Net assets beginning of year ‘ S - 26,509,106 26,303,318

Net assets end of year : ' ' $ 27,080,466 26,509,106

Tama County’s net assets of governmental activities increased approximately $571,000 during the
year. Revenues for governmental activities remained virtually unchanged from fiscal 2008 to fiscal
2009. The total cost of all programs and services decreased by 2.7%. Opeérating grants,
contributions and restricted interest decreased due to fewer dollars being received from the Iowa ‘
Department of Transportation through road use tax funds

~ The cost of all governmental activities this year was approximately $14.4 million compared to

. approximately $14,87 million last year. However, as shown in the Statement of Activities on page
13, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities was only $7.5 million
because some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs (§1.5 million)
* or by other governments and organizations that sub sidized certain programs with contributions and
grants ($5.4 million). Overall, the County’s governmental program revenues including
intergovernmental aid and feeé for services, decreased in 2009 from approximately $7.2 million to
approximately $6.9 million. The County paid for the remaining “public benefit” portion of
governmental activities ($7 million} with taxes (some of which could only be used for certain
programs) and with other revenues, such as interest and general entiflements. General revenues
- increased due to an 1ncrease in property tax collec’nons




INDIVIDUAL MAJOR FUND ANALYSIS

“As Tama County completed the year, its governmenta! funds reported. a combined fund balance of

“approximately $6.6 million, an increase of more than §1.2 million above last year's total of
approx:xmately $5.4 million, The following are the maJ or reasons for the changes in fund balances of
the major funds from the prior yeat: :

« General Fund revemies and exp enditures remained consistent when compared to the prior year. The
ending fund balance showed a modest increase of approximately $122,000 from the prior year to
approx1mately $3,012,000.

« The County has cotitinued to look for ways to effectivély manage the cost of mental health services.
. For the year, expenditures totaled approximately $1,861,000, an increase of 4.3% from the prior year.
- The Mental Health Fund balance at year end increased approximatety $250,000 over the prior year.

-« Rural Services Fund revenues increased 3.8% or approximately $94,000 over the prior year, due
principally to an increase in the tax revenues collected. - For the year, expenditures fotaled
approximately $396,000, a decrease of 45% from the prior year. This decrease was a result of fewer
dollars being expended on roadway construction projects and snow and ice removal, ‘

« Secondary Roads Fund revenues decreased approximately $277,000, due principally to fewer
dollars being received from road use tax and reimbursements from other governments for joint
projects. Expenditures decreased approximately . $194,000 due to fewer road maintenance projects
being done. The amount that the County transferred from the Rural Services and General Funds
decreased by approximately $94,000. These changes resulted in an 1ncrease in the Secondary Roads -
Fund endmg balance of approximately $170,000.0r 11.5%

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, Tama County amended its budget once. The amendment was made in
May 2009 and resulted in an increase in budgeted disbursements related to local bealth and home
ownership grant expenditures. The County received additional funding from the state related to a
veterans affairs grant and the home ownership grant The expenditures were increased to reflect this
addmonal revenue.

The County S recelpts were $155,614 greater than budgeted, a variance of 1%.

‘ Total d1sbursements were $2,612,472 less than the amended budget. This was pr1mar11y dueto the
County antlclpated capital projects not being done.” .

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Asse_ts

At June 30, 2009, Tama County had approximately $40 million invested in a broad range of capitél
assets, including public safety equipment, buildings, roads and bridges. This amount represents a net

increase (including additions and deletions) of approximately $338,000, or less then 1% over last
year, - ' :




Capital Assets of Governmental Activities at Year End |

(Expressed in Thousands)

June 30,

‘ : _ : _ 2009 2008
Land : : : $ 859 740
Construction in progress . _ : 122 . 791
Buildings and improvements ‘ _ S 5,400 5,364
Machinery and. equ:lpment , ' : - 7,802 7,701

- Infrastructure ' S 26,223 - 25,472

Total - - $ 40,406 40,068
Thls year’s maj or additions 1ncluded {in thousands) ' N
Sheriff’s vehicles - - - o C 48
Boilers S e : .36
Conservation equipment o - ' . ' 46
Conservation land ' : : T - 119
Roadway construction - . : - ‘ .- 82
To’cél- - : ‘ $ 331

The County had depremanon expense of $1, 437 727 in fiscal 2009 and total accumulated deprecmt:ton
of $21,410,807 at June 30, 2009.

The County’s ﬁscal year 2009 capltal budget included funds prlmanly for the continued upgradmg of - -

secondary roads and purchase of land for conservation These projects will be funded with resources
on hand in the Cotinty’s fund balances. More detailed information about the County’s capital assets is
presented in Note 5 to the financial statements.

_Long—Term Debt

At June 30, 2009, the County had approximately $518,000 ina capltal lease and other debt compared |
to approxxmately $423 000 at June 30, 2008, as shown below.

_ Outstanding D'ebt of Governmental Activities at Year-End

June 30,
o | o S | 2009 2008
Capital Lease Purchase Agreement .- . % 31,893 - 61,342
* Compensated Absences - , . ' 486,459 - 361,669

Total o : : $ 518,352 . 423,011 -

The Constitution of the State of Iowa limits the amount of general obligation debt counties can issue
to 5 percent of the assessed value of all taxable property within the County’s corporate limits. Tama -
Cotnty’s outstanding general obligation debt is significantly below its constitutional debt limit of
approximately $37 million. Additional information about the County’s 1ong—tem1 debt is presented in
Note 6 to the financial statements.




| ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

Tama County’s élected and appointed officials and citizens conmdered many factors when settlng the
fiscal year 2010 budget, tax rates and the fees charged for various County activities. The proposed
budget for fiscal year 2010 includes some increases above the current budget in both the revenue and
expenditure categories. :

The County anticipates some improvement in total assessed valuations due to expansion of value-
added agricultural enterprises, such as bio diesel and ethanol plants, as well as improved prices of
agricultural commodities, which will be reflected in the productmty factor. However, residential
rollbacks miay off-set some of these increases. -

The Cou‘nty continues fo seek ways to contain costs by sharing programs and personnel with other
counties and to increase reverues through user fees, grants and contracts rather than solely relying on
tax 1ncome : : '

The County’s share of total property tax collections is about 20%. The remaining 80% of property - '

tax collections are disbursed to the school districts, community colleges, c1ty governments ;
townships, extension servme and other entities within the County

| CONTACTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

- This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, custorers and creditors with a
general overview of Tama County’s finances and to show the County’s accounitability for the money
it recetves. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact
the County Auditor’s Office, Tamia County Administration Bu11d1ng, 104 West State Street, P.O, Box
61, Toledo Iowa 52342
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Tama County

Total net assets

See notes to financial statements.

Exhibit A

Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2009
Governmental
: Activities
Assets
Cash and pooled investments $ 8,262,583
. Receivables: '

Property tax: : _
Delinquent "~ 13,012
- Succeeding year 73 99,959

Interest and penalty dn property tax 64,504

Accounts -21,368 -

Accrued interest 8,905

Due from other governments 468,587
Inventories 535,614
Prepaid expenses 30,236
- Capital assets (net of accumulated deprec1at10n) 18,995,351
Total assets 35,800,229
Linbilities |
Accounts payable . 522,737 . ..
Salaries and benefits payable 124,143 -
Due to other governments 154,572
Deferred revenue: :
Succeeding year property tax ~ 7,399,959
Long-term liabilities:

Portion due or payable within one year: _
Capital lease purchase: agreement 31,893
Compensated absences 486,459

Total habllltles 8,719,763
‘Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 18,963,458
Restricted for:

Supplemental levy purposes 1,145,859

Mental health purposes ' 253,596

Secondary roads purposes - 1,449,100

Capital projects. 40,439

Other purposes 3,444,362

Unrestricted 1,783,652

§ 27.080,466
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Tama County
Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2009
Program Revenues
Operating Grants, Capital Grants,
Contributions  Contributions
Charges for- and Restricted  and Restricted
Expenses Service Interest Interest
Functions/Programs:
Governmental activities:
Public safety and legal services $ 2,679,163 287,521 31,923 -
Physical health and social services 1,358,463 431,286 326,770 -
Mental health 1,849,704 236,137 1,308,421 -
County environment and education 590,555 47,628 138,251 112,520
Roads and transportation 6,316,159 90,097 3,181,405 296,644
Governmental services to residents 483,490 281,829 441 -
Adminisiration 1,108,031 36,278 - -
Non-program : 2,200 50,093 - -
Total - $ 14,387,765 1,460,869 4,987,211 409,164
General Revennes:
" Property and other county tax levied for:
General purposes

Interest and penalty on property tax

State tax credits

Local option sales tax

Unrestricted investment earnings _
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

Change in net assets

Net assets beginning of year

Net assefs end of year

See notes to financial statements. 12




Exhibit B

Net (Expense)
Revenue and Changes
in Net Assets

(2,359,719)
(600,407)
(305,146)
(292,156)

(2,748,013)
(201,220) .

- (1,071,753)
47,893
(7,530,521)

6,959,089
66,489
387,193
548,739

126,832 -
4,991
8,548

8,101,881

571,360

26,509,106 .

$ 27,080,466 -
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Tama County

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2009
Special Revenue
Mental Rural Secondary
General Health Services Roads
Assets
Cash and pooled investments $§ 2,979,131 428412 1,100,160 1,147,036
Receivables:
Propei‘ty tax:
Delinquent 11,207 1,302 503 -
Succeeding year 4,909,424 562,445 1,928,090 -
Interest and penalty on property tax 64,524 - - -
Accounts 21,197 117 - 54
Accrued interest : ' 354 - - -
Due from other funds - - - 40,380
Due from other governments : ' 100,480 35,937 87,831 244,339
Inventories _ - - - 535,614
Prepaid expense 30,236 - - -
Total assets o $ 8,116,553 1,028,213 3,116,584 1,967,423
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 43,327 52,230 289 240,170
Salaries and benefits payable 68,217 3,837 5,026 47,063
Due to other funds - - 40,380 -
Due to other governments 8,593 145,459 - 520
Deferred revenue: '
Succeeding year property tax 4,909,424 562,445 1,928,090 -
Other 75,386 1,281 503 34,698
Total liabilities 5,104,947 765,252 1,974,288 322,451
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Supplemental levy purposes 1,145,859 - - -
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund 1,865,747 - ~ -
Special revenue funds - 262,961 1,142,296 1,644,972
Capital projects fund - - - -
Total fund balances 3,011,606 262,961 1,142,296 1,644,972
Total liabilities and fund balances ~ $ 8,116,553 1,028,213 3,116,584 1,967,423

See notes to financial statemenis. 14




Nonmajor

585207

"~ Total

6,239,946

13,012
7,398,959
64,524
21,368
354
40,380
468,587
535,614
30,236

585,207

14,813,980

8,240

43,520

344,256 -
124,143
40,380
154,572

7,399,959
155,388

51,760

8,218,698

493,008
40,439

1,145,859

1,865,747
3,543,237
40 439

533,447

6,595,282

585,207

14,813,980

15
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Tama County
- Reconciliation of the Balance Sheét =

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets _

Tune 30, 2009

Total go.vernmental fund balances (page-lS) S ' o b

Amounts reported for gavemmenml actzvztaes in rhe Statement of Net Assets are
different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are riot current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. The cost of assets is
$40,406,158 and the accumulated depreciation is $21,410,807.

Other lonp-term assets are not available fo pay cuﬁent petiod expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the govennnental_funds-.

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the costs of the partial
self funding of the County's health insurance benefit plan to individual funds, The.

. - assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund are included in gove:rmnental
activifies in the Statemant of Net Assets,

' Long—tenn liabilities, including capital lease purchése agreement payable and
compensated absences payable are not due and payable in the current pemod and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. '

Exhibit D

6,595,282
18,995,351
155,388

1,852,797

(518,352)

Net assets of governmental activities (page '11) . , ' $

27,080,466

See notes to financial statements. 16




Tama County
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances

- Governmental Funds

See notes to financial statements.

Year Ended June 30, 2009
Special Revenue
Mental Rural Secondary
General -~ Health Services Roads
Revenues:
Property and other county tax $ 4,615,619 536,298 2,356,309 -
Interest and penalty on property tax 57,758 - - -
Intergovernmental 1,154,554 1,567,195 102,585 3,443,351
Licenses and permits 11,059 - - 3,410
Charges for service 511,324 6,990 - -
Use of money and property 150,065 - - -
Miscellaneous 23,165 - - 86,687
- Total revenues 6,523,544 2,110,483 2,458,894 3,533,448
Expenditures:
Operaiing;
Public safety and legal services 2,625,219 - 24,316 -
Physical health and social services 1,379,806 C- - -
Mental health - 1,860,702 - -
County environment and education 453,280 - 99,314 -
Roads and transportation - - 215,737 4,902,700
Goveriimental services to residents 472,964 - 3,188 -
Administration 1,132,708 - - -
Non-program 2,200 - . - -
Capital projects 61,098 - 53,243 79,663
Total expenditures 6,127,275 1,860,702 395,798 4,982,363
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 396,269 249781 2,063,096 (1,448,915)
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets - - - Co-
Operating transfers in - - - 1,618,472
Operating transfers out (274,230) - (1,496,119) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (274,230) - (1,496,119) 1,618,472
Net change in fund balances 122,039 249,781 566,977 169,557
Fund balances beginning of year 2,889,567 13,180 575,319 1,475415
.Fund balances end of year $ 3,011,606 262,961 1,142,296 1,644,972

17




Exhibit E

‘Nonmajor Total

; 7,508,226
- - 57,758

150,750 6,418,435

- 14,469

3,292 521,606
19,220 169,285
17,859 127,711

191,121 14,817,490

59,551 2,709,086
- 1,379,806 -

- 1,860,702

27,997 580,591
- 5118437
2,725 478,877 .

- 71,132,708

- 2,200
146,123 340,127 .

236,396 13,602,534

(45275)  1214,956-

- 4,991 4,991

151,877 1,770,349
, - (1,770,349)

156,868 4,991

111,593 1,219,947
421,854 5,375,335

- 533,447 6,595,282
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Tama County Bxhibit F
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and |
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances - Total governmental funds (page 18) $ __1,219,947

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because'

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental

activites report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the

life of the assets. Depreciation expense exceeded cap1ta1 outlays in the

current year as follows:- _ : _
Expenditures for capital assets _ $ 375,001 .
Depreciation expense ‘ (1,437,727)  (1,062,726)

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the
County's year end, they are not considered available revenues and are
deferred in the governmental funds, as follows: _
Property tax ' 7 ‘ ' 8,333
Other o | R - 78,218 86,551

Repayment of long-term liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of .
Net Assets. : - 29,449

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activites do not reqmre the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds, as follows: :

Compensated absences , | : o (124,790)
The Internal Service Fund is used by management to chafge the costs of the
partial self-funding of the County's health insurance benefit plan to individual
funds. The change in net assets of the Internal Service Fund is reported with

governmental activities. _ o , 422929

Change in net assets of gowrnméntal activities (page 13) | o $ 571,360 -

See notes to financial statements, : -19




Tama County Bxhibit G

Statement of Net Assets
‘Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2009
- Internal
Service-
Employee

" Group Health

Assets -

Cash and and cash equivalents - $ 2,022,637

Accrued interest 8,641
Total assets 2,031,278

Liabilities o ‘

Accounts payable 178,481

Net Assets

Unrestricted $ 1,852,797

See notes to ﬁnancial statements. 20




" Tama County - | Exhibit H
Statement of Revenues, Expenses’
and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Internal
Service-
Employee
Group Health
Operating revenues: . _ ;
Reimbursements from operating funds - $ 1,717,016
Reimbursements from others , 17,600
Insurance reimbursements o | o 23,011
Total opetating revenues | . | - 1,757,627
Operating expenses: _ : : - '
. Medical claims . S $ 1,163,885
Insurance premims . S 153,098 _
Adminisirative fees ‘ . ' 67,808 1,384,791
Operating income : K 372,836
Non-operating revenues: . 7 _
 Interest income ‘ ' 50,093
‘Net income L , R 422,929
Net assets br:_:éjnnjng of year | _ o S _ 1,429,868
Net assets end of year o _ , : | - o b 1,852,._79,7

" See notes to financial staterments. , 21




Tama County
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2009 -

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from operating fund reimbursements
Cash received from employees and others
‘Cash received from insurance reimbursements
“Cash paid to suppliers for services '
* Net cash provided by operating activities

. Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments '

Net increase ii;l cash and cash'equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equi{?alents end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities: -
Operating income ' ' -
‘Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
{(Decrease) in accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

See notes to financial statements,

S22

‘Exhibit T

Internal -

Service-
" Employee .

Group Health

$ 1,717,016

17,600 .
23,011 -

(1,410,775)

346,852

50,972

397,824

1,624,813

$.2,022,637

$ 372,836

, (25,984)
$ 346,352




Tama County

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Assets

Cash and pooled investments:

County Treasurer
Other County officials
‘Receivables:
Property tax:
Delinquent
Succeeding year
Accounts 7
Due from other governments
Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Salaries and benefits payable

Due to other governments

Trusts payable

Compensated absences
Total liabilities

Net assets

. See notes to financial statements,

Agency Funds
June 30, 2009

23
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Exhibit J

1,452,507
18,027

51,515

15,197,076
50,729
18,755

16,788,609

139,559
21,793

16,509,949

53,717
63,591

16,788,609




Tama County
Notes to Financial S_tatements ‘
June 30, 2009

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Tama County is a political subdivision of the State of Towa and operates under the Home Rule '
provisions of the Constitution of lowa. The County operates under the Board of Supervisors form of
government, Elections are on a partisan basis. Other elected officials operate independently with

the Board-of Supervisors. These officials are the Auditor, Treasurer, Recorder, Sheriff, and
Attorney. The County provides numerous services to citizens, including law enforcement, health
and social services, parks and cultural activities, planning and zoning, roadway construction and
maintenance and general administrative services.

The County s financial statements are prepared in confonmty with U.S. ger.tel ally accepted
accounting pr1nc1ples as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board

A. Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, Tama County- has included all funds, organizations, agencies,
boards, commissiotis and authorities, The County has also considered all potential component

_ units for which it is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the Cotnty are such that exclusion would cause the _
County’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability.
These criteria includé appointing a voting maj jority of an organization’s governing body and (1)
the ability of the County t6 impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the

© organization to provide specific benefits to or impoese specific financial burdens on the County.

These financial statements present Tama Couﬁty (the primary govemxhent) and its component
units. The component units discussed below are included in the County’s reporting entity
because of the sxgmﬁcance of their operatmnal or ﬁnanmal relat1onsh1ps with the County

Blended Comp_onent U11_1t. - The_fo_llowmg component units are entities which are legally
separate from the County, but are so intertwined with the County they are, in substance, the same
as the Cou:nty. They arereported as part of the County and blended into the appropriate funds.

Dramage District #3 has been established pursuant to Chapter 468 of the Code of Towa for the
drainage of surface waters from agricultural and other lands or the protection of such lands from

~overflow. Although this district is legally separate from the County, it is controlled, managed -
and supervised by the Tama County Board of Supervisors. This drainage district is reported as a
Special Revenue Fund. The County has other drainage districts that are managed and supervised

by elected trustees. The financial transactions of these districts are reported in an agency fund.
Financial information of the 1nd1v1dua1 dra:mage districts can be obtamed from the Tama County
Auditor’s ofﬁce : :
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Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2009

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

A, Renorting Entity ( continuecl)

B.

o1ntly Governed Orgamzatmns The County partlc1pates in several jointly governed
organizations that provide goods or services to the citizenry of the County but do not meet the
criteria of a joint venture since there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the
participating governments. The County Board of Supervisors are members of or appoint

representatives to the following boards and commissions: Tama County Assessor's Conference -

Board, Tama County Joint E-911 Service Board, Tama County Economic Development
Commission and Tama County Emergency Management Commission. Financial transactions of
these organizations are included in the County’s financial statements only to the extent of the
County’s fiduciary relationship with the organization and, as such, are reported in the Agency
Funds of the Cou.nty

The County also participates in the following additional jointly govetned organizations
established pursuant to Chapter 28E.of the Code of Towa: Heartland Risk Pool Insurance, Tama
County Solid Waste Disposal Commission, County Case Management Services, Mid-Towa Drug
Task Force, Northeast Jowa Response Group, Central Towa Juvenile Detention Center and
Region VI Planning Commission. . :

Basis of Presentatlon

: Government—mde Financial Statements — The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of

~ Activities report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the County and its

component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities are supported by property tax mtergovernmental revenues
and other nonexohange transaohons

The Statement of Net Assets presents the County’s nonfiduciary assets and _liabilities,' with the
difference reported as-net aSsets. Net assets are reported in three categories. - '

Invested in ‘capital assets, net of related debt oons1sts of capital assets, net of
~ accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and
-other debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of thoge assets,

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally
imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation,

Unrestricied net assets consist of net assets not meeting the definition of the two

- preceding categories. Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources’
imposed by management which can be removed or modified.

25




Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Contmued)
June 30 2009

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Pol_icies (eontinued) ]
B. Basis of Presentation (continued).

" The Statement of Actm’oes demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a gwen
function are offset. by program reveriues. Direct expenses are those clearly identifiable with a
specific function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function and 2)
grants, contributions and interest restricted to meeting the operational or capifal requirements of
a particular function.. Property tax.and other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported mstead as general revenues.

Fund Finanoial. Statements - S'eparate ﬁnanclal statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government- .
wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate
colunms in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and
reported as other nonma] or govermnental furids.

The County reports the followmg major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. All general tax revenues and
other revenues not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are

- accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid the general operating expenditures, the
fixed charges and the capital 1rnprovement costs not paid from other funds.

Special Revenue;

The Mental Health Fund is used to account for property tax and other revenues
designated to be used to fund mental health, mental retardat1on, and developmental
dlsabﬂltles services.

The Rural Services Fund is used to account for property tax.and other revenues to _
provide services which are primatily intended to benefit those persons residing in the
oounty outside of mcorporated city areas. :

The Secondary Roads Fund is used to account for secondary road construction and
‘maintenance.

Additionally, the County reports the folloﬁring funds:
Proprietafy ‘Fund - An Internal Service Fund is utilized to account for the financing -

of goods or services purchased by one department of the County and provided to
other departments oragencies on a cost reimbursement basis,
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Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Contlnued)
| June 30, 2009 |

O3 ‘Summ'ai'y of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
‘B. Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fiduciary Funds — Agency Funds are tsed to account for assets held by the County
as.an agent for individuals, private organizations, certain jointly governed
' orgamzations, other govermnental units and/or other funds.

C. Measurement- Focus 'and Basis of Accoynting

The gevernment-w1de, propnetary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported

using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, Revenues

are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of

the timing of related cash flows. Property tax is recognized as revenue in the year for which it is

levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all e11g1b111ty requlrements
- . imposed by the provider have been satisfied.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported usmg the current financial resources |
measurement focus and the tmodified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available; Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days after year end.

Property tax, mtergovennnental revenues (shared revenues, grants and reimbursements from
- other governments) and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual, All other revenue
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incutred, as under accrual accounting.
However, principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, compensated absences
and termination benefits are recorded as-expenditures only when payment is due. Capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds, Proceeds of general long-term
debt and acqulsltmns under eapnal leases are reported as other ﬁnancmg sources, -

- Under the terms of grant agreements the County funds certain programs by a combmation of
specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus, when
program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to
finance the program. Tt is the County’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources
{0 such programs, followed by categorical block grants and then by general revenues.

“The proprietary fund of the County applies all applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as the
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research
Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure.
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Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2009

(@) - Summary of Significant. Accounting Policies {contimued)
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The -
principal operating revenues of the County’s Infernal Service Fund is charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for Internal Service Funds include the cost of services
and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meetmg this deﬁmuon are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses

The County mamtams its financial. records on the cash basis, The financial statements of the

County are prepared by making memorandum adjusting entries to the cash basrs financial S ]
records. : |

_ D. Assets, LiaBiliﬁes-and Fund Bquity

The following accounting policies are followed in preparing the financial statements:

Cash, Pooled Investments and Cash Equivalents — The cash balances of most County funds are i
pooled and invested. Interest earned on investments is recorded in the General Fund unless , B
otherwise provided by law. Investments are stated at fair value except for the investment in the :
Towa Public Agency Investmerit Trust which is valued at amortized cost and non-negotiable - -
certificates of deposit wh1ch are stated at cost.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all short—telm cash inivestments that are highly hqmd
- are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily convertible to known
- amounts of cash and, at the day of purohase have a maturity date no longer than three. months

Property Tax Reoeivable — Prop erty tax in governmental funds is. accounted for using the _
modified accrual basis of accounting. -

Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the levy or lien date, which is the date the
tax asking is certified by the County Board of Supervisors. Delinquent property tax receivable
represents unpaid taxes for the current and prior years. The succeeding year property tax
receivable represents taxes certified by the Board of Supervisors to be collected in the next fiscal
year for the purposes set out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, the Board of
Supervisors is required to certify its budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal year.
However, by statute, the tax asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year bécomes
effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has
been recorded, the related revenue is deferred in both the government-wide and fund financial , I
statements and wil! not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied. . '
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Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Contmued)
June 30, 2009

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D. Assets, Liabil‘ities -and Fund Eguity [cOntinued)

Property tax revenue recognized in these funds become due and collectible in September 7
and March of the fiscal year with a 1%:% per month penalty for delinquent payments; is based on
January 1, 2007 assessed property valuations; is for the tax accrual period July 1, 2008 through
June 30, 2009 and reflects the tax askmg contained in the budget certified by the County Board
of Superv1sors m March 2008. -

Interest and Pe’nal’ty on Progerty ‘Tax Recéivable — Interest and penalty on propetty tax recei;vable
‘represents the amount of interest and penalty that was due and payable but has not been,
collected

Due from and Due to Other Funds — During the course of its operations, the County has
numerous transactions between funds. To the extent certain transactions between funds had not
been-paid or received as of June 30, 2009, balances of interfund amounts receivable ot payable
have been recorded in the fund ﬁnancml statements. :

Due from Other Governments ~ Due from other governments represents amounts due from the
State of lowa, various shared revenues, grants and reimbursements from other governments.

Inventories — inventones are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories
consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. Inventories of governmental finds are
recorded as expend1tures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capfcal Asset — Capital assets, which include property, equipment and vehicles, and -
infrastructure assets acquired after July 1, 1980 (e. g., roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, s1dewalks
~ and similar items which are immovable and of value only to the County), are reported in the
~ governmental activities column in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. Capital assets
are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
_ estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repair
- that do not add to the value of the asset or materlally extend asset lives are not capitalized.
Reportable capital assets are defined by the County as assets with initial, individual costs in
excess of the following thresholds and estimated useful lives in excess of two years. '

Asset Class e ~ Amount
Infrastructure '$ 50,000
Land, buildings and improvements 25,000
Equipment and vehicles - 5,000
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Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
- June 30, 2009

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities and Fuhd Equity (continued)

Cap1ta1 assets of the County are. depremated usmg the strmght lme method over the followmg
estimated useful Tives:

Estimated Useful -

Asset Class i Lives (In Years)
Buildings 2050
Building improvements - 20-50
Infrastructure 30-50
Equipment - S 5-20

- Vehicles : 7-10

Due to Other Governments — Due to other governments represents taxes.and other revenues
collected by the- County and payments for sefvices which will be renntted {0 other governments.

- Trusts Payabl ~— Trusts payable represents amounts due to others Whlch are held by various
County ofﬁe1als in. ﬁduc1ary capa01t1es until the underlying legal matters are resolved.

Deferred Revenuge - Although certain revenues are measurable, they-are not available. Available
means collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Deferred revenué in the governmental fund
financial statements represents the amount of assets that have been recognized, but the related
revenue has not been recognized since the assets.are not collected within the current period o
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to beused to pay liabilities of the current period.
Deferred revete consists of unspent grant proceeds as well as property tax receivable and other-
receivables not collected within sixty days after year end.” ‘

" Deferted revenue in the Statement of Net Assets consists of succeeding year property tax
receivable that will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is 1ev1ed and unspent
grant proceeds. ‘

Compensated Absences - County employees dccunmlate a limited amount of earned but unused
vacation hours for subsequent use or for payment upon termination, death or retirement. A
liability is recorded when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary fund and fidueiary fund
financial staternents. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental fund financial

- statements only for employees who have resigned or retired. 'The compensated absences liability
has been computed based on rates of pay in effect at June 30, 2009, The compensated absences
liability attributable to the governmental activities will be pa1d primarily by the General Mental
Health Rural Services and Secondary Roads Funds.
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Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Contmued)
June 30, 2009

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (coniinued)
D. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (continued)-

Long-Term Liabilities — In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable '
governmental activities or propristary fund Statement of Net Assets. Bond issuance costs are
reported as defcrred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources, Issuance costs;, whether or not withbeld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity — In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance are
reported for amounts that are not available for appropriation or legally restricted by outside-
parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative

~ management plans that are subject to change. '

Net Assets "The et assets of the Internal Semce Employee Gmup Health Fund is demgnated
for anticipated future catastrophic losses of the County.

E. BudgetS'and Budgetagy Accounting.
The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Requlred Supplementary
Information. During the year ended June 30, 2009, disbursements in a department exceeded the
amount appropnated

Cash and Pooled Investments

The Coumty’s depos1ts in banks at June 30, 2009 were entlrely covered by federal depository -

- insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Towa, This

chapter provides for addmonal assessments agamst the deposfcones to insure there will be no loss of
- public funds.

The County is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit
dt federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of Supervisors; prime eligible
bankers acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain
registered open-end management investment companies; certain’ joint investment trusts; and '
warrants or 1mproven1ent certificates of a dramage di strlct

In adchtlon the County had investments in the Iowa Pubhc Agency Investment Trust which are
- valued at-an amortized cost of $998 354 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act

of 1940
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Tama C.o'unty_
~ Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
- June 30, _2009

(2) Cash and Pooled Investments (continued)
Interest rate risk. The Couﬁty-’s i,n_vestment,policy-ﬁnﬁts the investment of oﬁerating funds (funds -
expected to be expended in the current budget year or within 15 months of receipt) to inStmments
that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in investments -
with maturities longer than 397 days, but the maturmes shall be consistent with the needs and use of
the County
Credit risk. The investment in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust is unrated.

(3) Due From and Due to Other Funds

The detail of interfund receivables and pa}iables at June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund - Amount
Special Revenue: . Special Revenue:
Secondary Roads - Rural Services - _§ 40,380

These balances result from the time lag between the dates interfind goods and services are provided -
or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system and ‘
‘payments between funds are made.

@ In’terfund Transfers

The detail of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Transfet to _ Transfer from © . _Amount

' Capital-Projects ' : General o $ 39,000 :

Specml Revenue , :
Vehicle Replacement/ Computer

~ Maintenance General S 83,’833

Land Acquisition and . : B .

Development Fund ; (Feneral : ' 29,039

" Special Revenue: - - - : . _ -

" _Secondary Roads ) ~ General S - 122,353
S ' Special Revenue: A
Rural Services - 1,496,119 0

1,618,472

$ 1,770,349

" Transfers generally move resources from the fund statutorﬂy required to collect the resources o the
fund statatorily reqmred to expend the tesqurces.
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Tama County

June 30, 2009

(5) Capital Assets

- Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Capftal asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Total deprec1at1on expense - governmental act1v1t1es

33

$

Balance - Balance
Beginning _ : End of
. .of Year Increases  Decreases Year
Governmental activities: ' ' '
Capital assets not being deprec1ated : - '
Land ' $ 739,979 - 119,036 - 859,015
Construction in progress , : - © 79,091 .. 669,123 121,968
Totai capital assets not being depreciated - 1,531,070 119,036 669,123 980,983
Capital assets being depreclated ' ; AR : _
Buildings _ R 5,363,802 35,840 - 5,399,642
Equipment and vehicles : ‘ 7,701,405 146,985 - 46,125 7,802,265
Infrastructure, road network T -25,472,252 751,016 - 26,223,268 .
Total capital assets being deprec1ated .. 38537459 933,841 46,125 39,425,175
Less accumulated depree1at10n for: ' , ‘ : :
Buildings- 2,012,932 107,770 ' - 2,120,702
Equipment and vehicles - o 4,792,192 500,157 37,372 5,254,977 .
Infrastructure, road network © . 13,205,328 829,800 © - 14,035,128
Total accumulated depreciation o 20,010,452 1,437,727 - - 37,372 21,410,807
Total capital assets being depreciated, net . 18,527,007 ° (503,886) 8,753 18,014,368
- Governmental activities = . : . ' _
capital assets, net ' o - $ 20,058,077  (384,850) ° 677,876 - 18,995351
Deprec1at10n expense was charged to the followmg functions:
Governmental activities: - '
Public safety and legal services $ 86,708 -
Physical health and social services - 21,857
Mental health 7,381
County environment and education 27,827
Roads and transportation - 1,214,060
Governmental services to residents 22,306 .
Administration - 57588
1,437,727




‘Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued). -
June 30,2009

(6) Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30,2009 is as follows

Capﬂal
- Lease. -
“Purchase  Compensated
_Agreement  Absences  Total
Balance beginning of year ~ $ 61,342 . 361,669 423,011
. Increases - 124,790 124,790
Decreases = 20,449 . ' - . 29,449
Balance end of year - 8 31,893 486459 518,352
Ducwithinoneyear 8. 31,893 486459 518352

"CaDital Lease Purchase Apreement

The County has entered into a capital lease purchase agreement to lease new financial and-

administrative accounting software with an historical cost of $121,333. The following is a schedule

of the future minitnum lease payments, including interest at a rate of 8.3% per annum, and the
- present value of net minimum lease payments under the agreement in effect at June 30, 2009:

: ' Fmanc1a1 and
- Year _ © Administrative
ending - ' ‘Accounting
June 30, : ' - Software '
2010 - - - $ 34,544
. Total minimum lease payments : 34,544
Less amount representing interest ' 2,651
'Pfesent value of net_minimum _ _
lease payments =~ $ 31,893

Payments under the capxtal lease pu:fehase agreement totaled $34 544 for the year ended
June 30, 2009. . :
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Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2009
(7) Operating Leases
The County has entered into various operating leases for office copy machines and a postage meter. |

~ These leases expire at various times through November 2014. The following is a schedule by year
of the total annual lease costs required under the operating leases

Year ending Rent

June 30, Due
2010 $ .11,863
2011 11,863
2012 11,608
2013 " 17,657 .

2014 468 .
Total = § 43,459

* The total anmual lease costs for the year ended Juzie 30, 2009 were '$19,752.
8) Due to Other Gov'ernments
The County purchases services from other governmental units and also acts as a fee and tax -

‘collection agent for various governmental units, Tax collections are remitted to those governments
in the month following collection. A summary of amounts due to other governments is as follows:

Fund. - | ‘ Des':cription : ) Amount |
 General . Services - § 8593
| Special Revenue: - : . . o - :

Secondary Roads - o - - Services . ' ' 520
Mental Health - _ -~ Services - , . 145,459
) _ _ ' _145,9'79

Total for governmental funds ' L § 154,572

Agency: _ o L : _

County Assessor - o Collections $ 529,165
Schools . - ' _ 9,893,746
Community Colleges -~ 3 : 1,343,380
Corporations - - ' - 3,440,112
Townships o ' _ ‘ S 272,022
Auto License and Use Tax . - . . 7 363,224
E-911 : ' S 173,910
Emergency Management Services . . 106,291
~ All other o o - - 388,099
Total for agency funds = S . $ 16,500,949
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Tama County |
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2009

) Taliia County Employee Group Health Fund

" The Internal Service, Tama County Employee Group Health Fund was established to account for the
partial self funding of the County's health insurance benefit plan. The plan is funded by both
employee and County contributions and is administered through a service agreement with Bernie
Lowe Associates, Inc. The apreement is subject to automatic renewal provisions, The County
assumes Hability for claims up to the individual stop loss limitation of $32 500, Claims in excess of
coverage are insured through purehase of stop loss i insurance.

Monthly payments of service fees and plan contributions to the Tama County Employee Group
Health Fund are recorded as expenditures from the operating funds, Under the administrative
services agreement, monthly payments of service fees and claims.processed are paid to Gallagher
Benefits, Inc. from the Tama County Employee Group Health Fund. The County's contrlbutlon for
the year ended June 30, 2009 was $1,717,016.

Amounts payable from the Employee Group Health Fund at June 30, 2009 total $178,481, Whlch is
for incurred but not reported (IBNR) and reported but not paid claims. The amounts are based on
actuarial estimates of the amounts necessary to pay prior-year and current-year claims andto
establish a reserve for catastrophic losses. That reserve was $1,852,797 at June 30, 2009 and is -
reported as a designation of the Internal Service, Employee Group Health Fund net assets, A

* liability has been established based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards

" Board Statement No. 10, which requires a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the
issuance of the financial statements indicates it is probable a liability has been incurred at the date of
the financial statements and the amount of the'loss can be reasonably estimated. Settlements have
not exceeded the stop-ioss coverage in any of the past three years. A reconciliation of changes i in..
the aggregate liability for clalms for the current year is as follows:

| 'Unpa1d claims as begrnmng of year B .' _' ' - s 204,465
Incurred claims (1n01ud1ng claims mcurred but not reported | ‘ . s
at June 30, 2009)- o . 1,163,885 -
Payments on claims during ttre fiscal year E - 1,189,869

* Unpeid claims end ofyear I - . - $ 178481

(10) Pensinn-_and Retirement Benefits

* The County contributes to the fowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS), which is a cost- -

* sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of lowa. TPERS
provides retirement and death benefits which are established by state statute to plan members and
beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements

. and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to IPERS P.O.
Box 9117, Des Momes Towa, 50306-9117, .
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Tama County
- Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
- June 30 2009

(10) Pension and Retirement Benefits (continued)

~ Most regular plan members are required to contribute 4.10% of their annual covered salary and the
County is required to contribute 6.35% of covered salary. Certain employees in special risk
occupations and the County contribute an actuarially determined contribution rate. Contribution
requirements are established by state statute. The County's contribution to IPERS for the years
ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $330,884, $323,897 and $292,624, respeet:[vely, equal to
the required eontrlbutlons for each year.

(11) Risk Management

Tama County is a member in the Heartland R.lSk Pool, as allowed by Chapter 331.301 of the Code of
. Towa. The Heartland Risk Pool (Pool) is a local government risk-sharing pool whose members
include ten counties throughout the State of Jowd. The Pool was formed July 1, 1987 to provide
workers’ compensation and property/casualty insurance for its members. The risk pool was created
for the purpose of prov1d1ng and mamtalmng self-insurance benefits on a group basis substanualiy at
cost. : s

‘Each member County is responsible for the payment of member contributions to the risk pool on an

~ annual basis. Member contributions to the risk pool are recorded as expenditures from the operating
funds at the time of payment to the risk pool, In the event of payment of any loss by the risk pool,
the risk pool is subrogated to the extent of such payment to all the rights of the member County
against any person or other entity legally responsible for damages for said loss, and in such event,
the member County is responsible for rendering all reasonable assistance, other then pecuniary
assistance, to affect recovery. The tisk pool is responsible for paying the reinsurance premiums on
the insurance policies when due, to pay claims in accordance with the various coverages and to -

- make other payments as required by applicable law, to establish and accumulate a reserve or
reserves in amounts which are deemed advisable or required by law to-carry out the purposes of the -
risk pool, and to pay all reasonable and necessary expenses for administering the risk pool and fund.

Initial rigk of loss for the self-insured coverage is retained by the risk pool. The risk pool obtained a
reinsurance policy for the year ended June 30, 2009, which covers exposures of specific losses in
excess of $750,000, with a $250,000 corridor deductible, per occurrence up to the statutory limits
for workers compensation, and in excess of $400,000 per occutrence, up to a maximum of
$8,000,000 per occurrence, including the rétention of the pool, for general liability, police -
professional, errors and omissions and automobile liability. The risk pool records a Hability for
unpaid claims based on estimates of reported and incurred but not reported claims and related loss
adjustment expenses. At June 30,2009, 2008 and 200’? the rigk pool reported a smplus of assets
over liabilities.

Member Counties retain the risk of claims, if any, exceeding maximum reinsurance coverages and
- the amount of surplus maintained in the risk pool by means of an assessment that would be charged
" to the member County in addition to the premium contributions, At Fune 30, 20098, settled claims
have not exceeded the risk pool reinsurance coverage since commencement of the risk pool.
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Tama County
Notes to Financial Statements (Contlnued)
June 30, 2009

(11) Risk Managernent.(eontiuued)

~ The County’s property and casualty oontr1but1ons to the risk pool are recorded as expend1tures from '

its operating funds at the time of payment to the risk pool. The County s oontrlbutlons to the Pool
for the year ‘ended June 30, 2009 were $334 083,

Initial mernbersth into the Pool is for a mandatory three year period. Subsequent to the initial
‘term, a member County may withdraw at the end of any given fiscal year. The initial rnembershlp
period for Tama County commenced July 1, 1987 and is subject to renewal every three years. The
county assumes liability for any dedueubles and claims in excess of coverage limitations. Settled
claims resulting from these 1‘181{8 have not exceeded oommerc1a1 insurance coverage in ay of the past
three fiscal yeas. :

(121) Conﬁngent Liability

‘ Dunng the year ended June 30, 1994, an underground storage tank 1nvest1gat1on classified three
former underground storage tank sites in Tama County as high risk, requiring the County to submit
plans for remedial action to the Towa Department of Natural Resources. The County is currently
contesting the high risk classification for two of the three sites. The County estimates the costs fo
remediate the sites under the proposed plans to be approximately $75,000 pex site. As a result, a
liability for $150,000 has been recorded in accounts payable inthe Secondary Roads Fund at

. 'June 30 2009, -

The environmental 1mpaot of the sites is currently unknown and the potential llabﬂlty, if any, for
add:1t1ona1 costs associated with the sites is 1ndeterm1nab1e _ ‘
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Tama County

Budgetary Comparison Schedule of

Receipts, Disbursements and Changes in Balances -

Budget and Actual (Cash Basis) - All Governmental Funds
Required Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30, 2009
Less
Funds not
Required to
Actual be Budgeted
Receipts: _
Property and other county tax $ 7,506,822 -
Interest and penalty on property tax 58,243 -
Intergovernmental 6,736,793 -
Licenses and permits 14,551 -
Charges for services 567,471 -
Use of money and property 180,185 -
Miscellaneous 126,284 -
Total receipts 15,190,349 -
Disbursements:
Public safety and legal services 2,699,299 -
Physical health and social services 1,377,151 -
Mental health 1,927,193 -
* County environment and education 610,628 -
Roads and transportation 5,121,978 -
Governmental services to residents 478,241 -
. Administration 1,170,143 -
Non—pro gram 2,200 -
Capital projects 289,762 -
Total disbursements 13,676,595 -
Excess (deficiency) of receipts over (under) disbursements 1,513,754 -
Other financing sources, net 4,991 -
Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other financing sources
over (under) disbursements and other financing uses 1,518,745 -
Balance beginning of year 4,721,201 859
Balance end of year _ $ 6,239,946 859

See accompanying independent auditors' report, 39




Final to

1,496,929

o Budgeted Amdunts Net

Net Original - Final Variance
7,506,822 7,444,461 7,444,461 62,361
58,243 - - 58,243
6,736,793 6,501,378 6,634,505 102,288
- 14,551 10,800 10,800 13,751
567471 501,655 501,655 65,816
180,185 26,300 26300 153,885
126,284 304215 - 417,014 (290,730)
15,190,349 14,878,809 15,034,735 155,614
2,699209 2,969,634 2,969,634 270,335
1,377,151 1,368,823 1,461,638 84,487
1,927,193 2,000,213 2,000213 - 73,020
610,628 602,577 689,599 78971
5121978 - . 5,767,957 5,767,957 645979
478,241 506,319 506319 28078
1,170,143 1365652 . 1365652 - 195,509
2,200 10,750 . 10,750 8,550
289762 1517305 . 1,517,305 1,227,543
13,676,595 16,109,230 16,289,067 __ 2,612472
1513754 (1,230421)  (1,254,332) 2,768,086
14,991 - ; 4991
1518745 (1,230.421)  (1,254332) 2,773,077
4720342 2727350 - 2727350 1,992,992
6,239,087 1473018 4,766,069




Tama County |
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Budget to GAAP Reconciliation
Required Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30, 2009
Governmental Funds
L - Modified
Cash Accrual -Act:rual_ :
Basis Adjustments  Basis

: Revéﬁues
Expenditures
Net
Other ﬁnanclng sdur‘ces, net
Beginning fund balénces

~ Ending fund balances

See accompanying independent auditors' report. . - 41

15,190,349 7(372,'859) 14,817,490

13,676,595 (74,061) 13,602,534

1,513,754 (298,798) 1,214,956

4,991 - - 4991
4721201 654,134 | 5375335
6,239,946 . 355336 6,595,282




Tama County
Notes to Required Supplementary Tnformation-
Budgetary Reporting
June 30, 2009

The budgetary compatison is presented as Requited Supplementary Information ih accordance with

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No, 41 for governments with significant budgetary
perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary comparisons for the General
Fund and eaoh major Special Revenue Fund,

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the County Board of Supervisors annually adopts a budget on the

cash basis following required public notice and hearing for all funds except blended component units.and - B

Agency Funds, and appropriates the amount deémed necessary for each of the different County offices
and departments. The budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed
procedures, Encumbranoes are not reco gmzed on the cash basis budget and appropnatlons lapse at year

_end

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon ten ma] or classes of expenditures known as functions,
not by fund. These ten functions are: public safety and legal services, physical health and social services,

- mental health, county environment and education, roads and transportatlon, governmental servicesto

residents, administration, non-program, debt service and capital projects. Function disbursements :
required to be budgeted include disbursements for the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, the Debt
Service Fund and the Capital Projects Fund. Although the budget document presents function .

disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at the aggregated function level, not by fund. Legal

budgetary control is also based upon the appropriation to each office or department. During the year, one
budget amendment increased budgeted d1sbursements by $179, 837 The budget amendment is reﬂected

“in the final budgeted amounts

In addition, anoual budgets are similarly adopted in accordance with the Code of Iowa by the appropriate

~ governing body as indicated: for the County Extension Office by the County Agricultural Extension

Couneil, for the County Assessor by the County Conference Board, for the E911 System by the Joint
E911 Service Board and for Emergenoy Management Services by the County Emergenoy Management
Co:mxmssmn ‘

During the year ended June 30, 2009, disbursements in a department exoeeded_ the amount apj)ropﬂate&
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Tama County
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009
Resource Vehicle Land
Enhancement Replacement/ Medicaid Acquisition and
and Computer  Reimburse- Development
Protection  Maintenance ment Fund
Assets
Cash and pooled investments $ 43,385 56,318 21,720 284016
'Total assets $ 43,385 56,318 21,720 284,016
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - - - 8,190
Deferred revenue ‘ - - - 43,520
Total liabilities - : - - 51,710
Fund balances:
Unreserved _ _ 43,385 56,318 21,720 232,306
Total liabilities and fund balances  § 43,385 56,318 21,720 284,016

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 43




- Schedule 1

Special Revenue
Tama - County ‘Co'unty ._'County County
County Recorder's”  Sheriff's  Sheriff's Attorney's ,
Nature Security  Records  Forfeiture DARR  Forfeiture Drainage Capital
Center - Services Management  Fund Monies Fund District  Projects  Total
76,509 11,514 50,270 31 29 117 - 859 40439 585,207
76,509 . . 11,514 50270 31 29 117 859 40,439 585;207
50 ; ; - - - ; - 8240
- . - - - - - - 43,520
50 - - ; 3 - - . 51,760
76459 11514 50270 . 31 29 117 859 40439 533447
76,509 11,514 50,270 31 29 117 859 40,439 585207
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Tama County

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2009
Resource Vehicle Land
Enhancement Replacement/ Medicaid Acquisition and
and Computer Reimburse- Development
Protection = Maintenance ment = - Fund
Revenues: _
Intergovernmental $ 18,062 - - 118,782
Charges for service - - - -
Use of money and property g31 97 - 4,585
Miscellaneous - 36 - 9,503
Total revenues 18,893 133 - 132,870
Expenditures:
Operating: .
Public safety and legal services ' - 44,000 - -
County environment and education - 23,911 - -
Governmental services to residents - ' - - -
Capital projects : - 370 - 145,753
Total expenditures _ - 68,281 - 145,753
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ,
over (under) expenditures 18,893 (68,148) - (12,883)
Other ﬁnancing‘ sources: ‘
Sale of capital assets - 4,991 - -
Operating transfers in - 83,838 - 29,039
Total other financing sources ' - 88,829 - 29,039
- Net change in fund balances , 18,893 20,681 - 16,156
Fund balances beginning of year 24,492 35,637 21,720 216,150
Fund balances end of year $ 43,385 56,318 21,720 232,306

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 45




Schedule 2

Special Revenue o :
Tama : County . County County County -
County - Recorder's  Sheriffs  Sheriff's Attorney's

Nature.  Security = Records Fo:fei‘pufe DARE  Forfeiture Drainage - Capital _
Center  Services Management  Fund -~ Monies Fund  District  Projects  Total

. . . 150,750

- 13,906 - _ _
. - 3,292 - - e - - . 3,292
13,266 - 441 - - e - - 19220
8,034 - - - . 286 - - 17,859
21,300 13,906 3,733 - 286 - - 19L121 -
C - 3954 1 4592 4005 3,000 . - 59,551
4,086 - o - - - - - 27,997
R X e - - - 275
- S . L - . 146,123
4086 3954 . 2725 4500 4005 __ 3,000 ; - 236,396
17214 9,952 1,008  (4592) (4,005 (2,714 . . (45275)
- - . - - . - 4991
. S - - - s - 39,000 151,877
.. Tl L o - . 39000 156,368
17214 9952 1,008 (4592) (4,005 @714 - - 39,000 111,593
50,245 1,562 49262 4,623 4034 2831 859 . 1439 421854

76,459 11,514 50270 0 31 29 117 859 . 40439 533447
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Tama County
Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
Tune 30, 2009
County Offices Agricultural
County County Extension County
Recorder Sheriff Education = Assessor Schools
Assets
Cash and pooled investments:
County Treasurer : $ - - 2,761 237,962 177,911
Other County officials 5,999 12,028 - - -
Receivables:
Property tax:
Delinquent - - 346 835 22,415
Succeeding year - - 150,000 400,030 9,693,420
Accounts : 1,790 - - 89 -
Due from other governments - - - - -
Total assets 7 $ 7,789 12,028 153,107 638,916 9,893,746
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - - - 89,946 -
Salaries and benefits payable - - - 4,633 -
Due to other governments 7,789 24 153,107 529,165 9,893,746
Trusts payable - 12,004 . - -
Compensated absences - - - - 15,172 -
Total liabilities : $ 7,789 12,028 153,107 638,916 9,893,746

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 3

(48

Auto :
: License Emergency
Community Special and Use Management :
Colleges Corporations Townships Assessments  Tax Empowerment  Services E-911
23,447 56,895 5,657 1,322 363,224 87,721 142,417 146,999
3462 24379 T2 - : - - .
1,316,471 3,358,838 266,893 - - : . . .
: - - ' - - - 7,768 - 20,219
. - - - - - 9,158 9,597
1,343,380 3,440,112 272,022 1,322 363,224 05,489 151,575 176,815
- - E - “ 26,452 31 2,905
- . - - R 11,425 IR
1,343,380 3,440,112 = 272,022 1,322 363,224 69,037 106,291 173,910
- - - - - - 33,828 -
1,343,380 3,440,112 272,022 . 363,224 95,489 151,575 176,815




‘Tama County | Schedule 3
" Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
- Agency Funds
June 30, 2009
_ : Third -
Economic ~ Sapitary = Party _ .
Development  Landfill Payees Other Total .
Assets '

Cash and pooled investments: - , o
County Treasurer ' $ 56,586 55,714 41,713 52,778 1,452,507
Other County ,ofﬁcials - ' - - - 18,027

~ Receivables: ' '

Property tax: _

Delinguent - - - 6 51,515
 Succeeding year - - 11424 15,197,076

Accounts - 20,863 “ - 50,729

Dus from other governments - - - - 18,755
Totalassets . $ 56,586 76577 AL713 64,208 16,788,609

. Liabilities -

Accounts payable o 3 7237 12,988 - - 139,559

Salaries and benefits payable 2,282 3,453 - - 21,793

Due to other governments 43,845 - - 48,767 - - 64208 16,500,949

Triists payable - - - 41,713 - 53117

Compensated absences - 3,222 11,369 - - - 63,591

Total libilities 8 56586 76577 4L7I3 64,208 16,788,609

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Tama County

Combmmg Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009
County Offices Agricultural
County County County Extension
Auditor Recorder Sheriff Education.
Assets and Liabilities
Balances beginning of year - 10,907 1,168 153,573
Additions: ,
Property and other county tax - - - 142,392
E-911 surcharge - - - -
State tax credits - - - 7,864
Interest - - - - -
Office fees and collections 2,444 237,265 269,161 -
Auto licenses, drivers license, use tax
and postage - - -
Assessments - - : - -
Trusts - - 157,254
Reimbursements from other governments - - - -
Miscellancous - - - -
Total additions 2,444 237,265 426,415 150,256
Deductions:
Agency remittances: : :
~ To other funds 2,444 107,878 265,914 -
To other governments - 132,505 4,332 150,722
Trusts paid out ~ - 145,309 -
Total deductions 2,444 240,383 415,555 150,722
Balances end of year - 7,789 12,028 153,107
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 50




Schedule 4

_ Auto
_ License
-County Commumnity . : ‘Special  and Use Empower-
Assessor.  Schools = Colleges  :Corporations - Townships Assessments Tax ment
660,216 9,741,283 1,329,652  3,605910 268,910 3,543 321,021 111,847
381,762 9204223 1221,369 3,346,762 252,889 - - -
18,990 500,021 . 64775 172,003 14192 - - e
- : - Lo oa106915 -
; - - - - 28129 - S
1,099 . . - - .. 369,733
401,851 9,704244 1,286,144 - 3,518,765 267,081 28,129 4,106,915 369,733
- e - . s2210 0 -
423,151 9,551,781 1,272,416 - 3,684,563 - 263,969 30,350 3,882,502 - 386,091
423,151 9,551,781 -1,272416 3684563 263960 30,350 4,064,712 386,091
638,916 9,893,746 1,343,380  3440,112 - 272,022 - 1,322 363,224 95,489
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Year Ended June 30, 2009
Emergency 7
Management Economic Sanitary
Services E-911  Development  Landfill
' Assets and Liabilities
Balances beginning of year $ 172,437 171,793 33,972 30,853
Additions:
Property and other county tax - - - -
E-911 surcharge - 183,782 . -
State tax credits - - - -
Interest : - 2,488 - -
Office fees and collections - - - -
| Auto licenses, drivers license, use tax
~ and postage - - - .
Assessments - - - -
Trusts - - - -
Reimbursements from other governments 605,302 . 124,981 -
‘ Miscellaneous 1,079 - 50,019 520,624
Total additions 606,381 186,270 175,000 520,624
Deductions: _
| Agency Remittances:
. To other funds - - - -
To other governments 627,243 181,248 152,386 474,900
| Trusts paid out - - . -
j Total deductions 627,243 181,248 152,386 474,900
Balances end of year $ 151,575 176,815 56,586 76,577
See accompanying 'indepeﬁdent auditors' report. 52
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Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds (Continued)




Third-
' Party o .
Payees Other - = Total
26,878 66,395 16,710,358
- 8,992 14,558,380
- - 183,782
- 651 778,496 -
- C. 2,488
- 3,293 - 512,163
- - 4,106,915
e - 28,129
283,643 - 353,854 794,751
- 4,051 734,334
. - 942554
283,643 370,841 22,642,001
- - 558,446
: - 25398 21,243,557
268,808 347,630 761,747
268,808 - 373,028 22,563,750

41,713

64,208 16,788,609
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All Govermental Funds

Tama County
Schedule of Revenues By Source and Expenditures By Function -

For the Last Nine Years
2009 2008 2007 2006
Revenues:
Property and other county tax $ 7,508,226 7,139,743 6,779,700 6,639,233
Interest and penalty on property tax 57,758 73,650 66,062 63,803
Intergovernmental 6,418,435 6,877,451 6,754,711 6,442,517
Licenses and permits 14,469 14,946 13,515 14,408
Charges for service 521,606 - 505,387 498,324 522,452
Use of money and property 169,285 251,133 300,347 213,015
- Miscellaneous 127,711 81,984 48,739 58,830
Total $ 14,817,490 14,944,294 14,461,398 13,954,258
Expenditures:

Operating: 7
Public safety and legal services . $ 2,709,086 2,672,476 - 2,531,566 2,480,455
Physical health and social services ' 1,379,806 1,335,015 1,202,218 1,121,910
" Mental health 1,860,702 1,783,875 1,694,136 2,387,504
County environment and education 580,591 616,085 825,251 579,237
Roads and transportation 5,118,437 5,414,893 5,889,960 5,197,434
Governmental services to residents 478,877 459,901 429,841 533,397
Administration 1,132,708 1,199,758 1,171,989 1,107,117
Non-program 2,200 3,427 181 827
Capital projects 340,127 783,-271 641,249 321,022
Total S 13,602,534 14,268,701 14,386,391 13,728,903
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Schedule 5

Modified Accrual Basis

13,517,682

-12,040,792

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

6,302,697 5,931,794  5211,802 4,747,824 4,434,697
110,698 53,806 58,411 53,772 . 45,311
6,258,963 6,194,220 5,803,803 5,297,022 5,028,399
10,841 13,645 6,712 4,772 3,890
576,931 542,154 533,987 651,744 597,378

118,865 94,480 120,038 170,579 316,028 -
109,005 . 55,017 120,108 64,832 86,037
13,488,000 12,885,116 11,854,861 10,990,545 = 10,511,740
2,449,550 2,202,911 - 2,116423 1,886,482 1,808,236
1,119,516 1,102,767 1,009,196 - 998,613 - 1,047,870
1,737,404 1,697,265 1,737,208 ~ 1,560,067 1,609,005
779,924 471,499 841,820 329,472 325,188
5,629,714 5,690,051 . 4,819,756 4,650,243 4,475,333
441,282 394,182 616,975 426,239 279,420
1,043,037 1,060,873 798,186 828,318 829,662
198 973 48,324 236,278 243
317,057 88,333 © 52904 .. 206,745 1,150,558

12,708,854 11,122,457

11,525,515
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2009

CFDA ‘Agency' or Pass- Program
Grantor/Program Number through Number Expenditures

Indirect:
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Iowa Department of Human Services:
Human Services Administrative Reimbursements:
State Adminstrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental
Nulrition Assistance Program 10.561 $ 11,570
Iowa Department of Public Health: :
Mid-Jowa Community Action:
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants,
and Children 10.557 4,084

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Iowa Department of Economic Development: : ‘ .
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 06-HM-133-69 . 45,568

U.8, Départment of Justice: |
lowa Department of Justice:
Governor's Office of Drug Control Policy:

Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.579 03C-1514 32,873
Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.579  DJ-BX-0975 1,114
S 33,987

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Iowa Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STP-E-CO86 _ :
(65)-8V-86 4,771
Towa Department of Public Safety:
Governor'sTraffic Safety Bureau:

Safety Belt Performance Grants 20.609 08-157, Task 162 - 3,373
Safety Belt Performance Grants 20.609 09-406, Task 157 829
4,202

U. S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Towa Depariment of Public Health:
Grinnell Regional Medical Center: : _
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 58881472 12,279

Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 58891472 4,850
' . 17,129

Immunization Grants ' 93.268 5889BT01 | 2,838
Immunization Grants 93.268 5888BT17 2,011
4,849
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| Tama County | - Scheduls 6
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
Year Ended June 30_, 2009

_ , _ _ CFDA  Agency or Pass- -Program
Grantor/Program ' Number through Number  Expenditures

. Mid-Towa 'Cormn_lmity Action: _ : _
Head Start . o 7 - 93.600 1,513
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States 93.994 15,955

Towa Department of Human Services:
Hurman Services Adminstrative Reimbursements:

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families ' 93.558 10,721
Refugee and Bntrant Assistance-State Administered Pr ograms 93.566 o 19

_ Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the ' : L
Child Care and Development Fund : 93.596 . , 3,044
Foster Care-Title [V-E : . 93.658 ' 6,469
Adoption Assistance ) . 93.659 1,560
Medical Assistance Prograny 3 93.778 14,116
State Childfen's Insurance Program - B 93.767 ' 89
Sccial Services Block Grant " ' 93,667 | 7,027
Social Services Block Grant L , 93.667 . T3675
' - ' 80,702

U.S. Deparh:dent of Homeland Security:
Towa Department of Public Defense: :
Towa Homeland Security and Emergency Management D1V151on: '
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially

Declared Disasters)-Conservation o - 97036 1763-DR-IA 23432

- Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially ' o _

Declared Disasters)-Secondary Roads : : 97.036  1763-DR-IA - 245,786
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially =~ o |

'Declared Disasters)-Emergency Management 97.036.  1763-DR-IA 5,718

o | ' = | - 274,936

Emergency Management Performance Grants ' 97.042 - 32,225

Total - | \ | $ 567,509

Basis of Presentation - The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity

of Tama County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information on this schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments :
and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of; the basic financial statements.

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 57




CERTIFIED ® PUBLIC ¢ ACCOUNTANTS
24 EAST MAIN STREET * MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158 * 641-753-9337 * FAX 641-753-6366

418 '_ 2ND STREET * GLADBROOK, 10WA 50635 * 641-473-2717 * FAX 641-753-6366
4949 PLEASANT STREET = SUITE 206 *- WEST DES MOINES, IOWA 50266 * 515-278-0286 * FAX 515-278-0287

James R. Bowman, CPA, * ji]ﬁ@bowma_nandmillerpc.com
Elizabeth A. Miller, CPA * beth@bowmanandmillerpc.com
Lori H.. Stansberry, CPA * lori@bowmanandmillerpc.éom

8 MILLER, P.C.

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Aeegrdanee with
Government Audmnﬁ Standards

To the Officials of Tama -Coﬁnty:

'We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each _
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Tama County, lowa, as of -and for the year
ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements listed in the -
table of contents and have issued our report thereon dated January 8, 2010. We conducted our audit in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the sta:ndards applicable to financial

audits contamed in Government Aud1t1ng Standal ds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing cur audit, we considered Tama County's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial stalements, but not for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
effectiveness of Tama County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not

express an opinion on the effectweness of Tama County’s internal control over financial reporting.

‘ Our e‘onsidera—tion of intemal control over financial reporting was f_er the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses,
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be s1gn1f1cant dCfICIGI’lClBS meludmg deficiencies we consider to be
‘material weaknesses. :

A control deficiency exists when the desigh or operation of the control does not allow

- management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or
combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects Tama County’s ability to initiate, authorize,
record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood a misstatement of Tama County’s financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Tama County’s
internal control. We consider the deficiencies in internal control described in Part II of the

~accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be significant deficiencies in 1nterna1

eontrol over financial reporting,
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A material weakness is a sigllificant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by Tama County’s 1ntema1 control. '

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the
- internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose
all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the
significant deficiencies described above, we believe items [1-A-09, II-B-09 and I1-C-09 are material
Weaknesses

Compliance and Qther Matters ‘

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tama County's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit-and, accordingly, we do not express -
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non- comphanoe or other matters that
are requlred to be reported under Government Aud1t1ng Standards. -

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the County's operations for the year |
ended June 30, 2009 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during
“our audit of the financial statements of the. County Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not

. all transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessatily audited. The

comments involving statutory and other Iegal matters are not intended to oonstltute legal 1nterpretat10ns
of those statutes

~ Tama County’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accomﬁ)anying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, While we have expressed our conclusion on the county’s
response, we did not audit Tama County’s response and, accordingly, we express no oplmon on it..

_ This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
~employees and citizens of Tama County and other parties to whom Tama County may report including
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and should not
: be used by anyone other than these spec1ﬂed part1es

We would 11ke to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance exténded to us by personnel of

Tama County during the course of our audit. -Should you have any questions concerning any of the
above matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

Bowman and Miller. P.C.
~ January 8, 2010 o
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ndependent Audfcors' chcrt on Comphancc with Reguircment
Apnlicable to Bach Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance

in Accordance with OMB C;rcular A-133

To the Officials.of Tama County:
: Compliahcc

We have audited the compliance of Tama County, Iowa, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
‘Compliance Supplement that are apphcable to each of its major federal programs for the year -
ended June 30, 2009. Tama County's major federal programs are identified in Part 1 of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance Wlﬂ’l the requiremetits of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements applicable to each of its major federal programs
is the responsibility of Tama County's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
'Tama County's comphancc based on our audit..

“We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. gcncrally acccpted aud1tmg

- standards, the standards applicable to financial andits-contained in Government Auditing -
Standards, issued by the Comptroller Geheral of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether non-compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
'have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.. An audit includes
examining, on & test basis, evidence about Tama County's comphancc with those rcqu1remcnts and
performing such other plocedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
.dctermmatlon on Tama County s compliance w1th those requirements.

In our opinion, Tama County comphed in all material respects with the rcquifcments
referred to above that are apphcablc to each of its maJ or federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2009,

Intcrnal Control Ovc_rccmnliance

The management of Tama County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grant '
agreements applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered
Tama County's internal control over comphancc with requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
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A control deficiency in Tama County’s internal control over compliance exists when the
design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency,
or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a
federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by Tama County’s internal control.

A material weakness is a -s-1gn1—f1cant-defie1ency, or combination of significant
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance: requ1rement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by Tama County’s
internal control :

. Our conmderatlon of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
the County’s internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over comphanoe that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. :

-Tama County’s responses fo thé- findings i.dentified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. While we have expressed our

- .conclusions on the County’s responses, we did not aud1t Tama County’s responses and, accordingly, '

we-express no opinion on them,
This report, a pubhc record by law, is mtended solely for the 1nf0rmat10n and use of the.
officials, employees and citizens of Tama County and other parties to whom Tama. County may

- report, including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report.is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specszd parties. -

(Bbwmdn and Miller, @.C.

January 8, 2010
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Tama County-
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ™
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Part I: Summary of the Independent 'A_uditors‘ Results:

Unqualified'opinions were issued on the financial statements.

Slgmflcant deficiencies in 1nternal control over fmancml reportmg were: d1sclcscd by the audit of
the financial statements, including material weaknesses

The audit did not disclose any non-compiiance which is material to the financial statements.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major programs were identified.

An unquallfled opinion was 1ssued onh compllanee with reqmrements apphoablo to each ma;or
program. -

The audit disclosed no audit fmdlngs whlch are requlred to be reported in accordance with Ofﬁce

- of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section- 510(a)

Ma_] or programs were as follows ,

CFDA Number 97.036 — Disaster Grants Public Assistance (Pres1dent1a11y Declared -
Disaster Arcas)

CFDA Number 93,667 — Soc1al Services Blook Grant
The dollar threshold used to disting.uish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.

Tama County did not qualify as a low-risk auditee. -
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Tama County
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Contmued)
| Year Ended June 30, 2009 |

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Sta'.tem-ehts:
) 'INSTANCES OF NON COMPLIANCE: -
. No tnatters were reported.
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES:

II-A-09 Segregation of Duties — During our review of internal control, the existing control
procedures are evaluated in order to determine that incompatible duties, from a control
standpoint, are not performed by the same employee. This segregation of duties helps to
prevent losses from employee error or dishonesty and, therefore, maximizes the accuracy
of the County’s financial statements. We noted that generally one or two individuals in the
offices identified may have control over the followmg areas for which no compensatmg

" controls exist: :

" Applicable

_ , S . Offices
(1) All incoming mail should be opened by an employee Treasurer,

who is not authorized to make entries to the account- Recorder

ing records. This employee should prepare a listing

of cash and checks received. The mail should then be

forwarded to the accounting personnel for processing.

Later, the same listing should be compared to the cash

receipt records. :

“(2) Bank accounts should be reconciled promptly at the - Recorder,
end of each month by an individual who does not - _ "~ Sheriff
sign checks handle or record cash, '

(3) Checks should be signed by an 1nd1v1dual who does ' " Treasurer,
not otherwise part1c1pate in'the preparation of the = Recorder,
checks. Priorto signing, the checks and the support- Sheriff

ing documentation should be reviewed for propriety.
After signing, the checks should be mailed without
allowing them to return to individuals who prepare
the checks or approve vouchers for payment.

"Recommendation - We realize segregation of duties is difficult with a limited number of
office employees. However, each official should review the operating procedures of their
office to obtain the maximum internal control possible under the circumstances. The
official should utilize current personnel to provide additional control through review of
financial transactions, reconciliations and reports. Such reviews should be performed by
independent persons to the extent possﬂ)le and should be ev1denced by initials or signatore
of the reviewer and the date of the rev1ew :
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Tama County
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Contlnued)
Year Ended June 30, 2009

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (continued):

Responge — Each office w111 be remmded to segregate. dut1es to practmally accomplish
.internal controls. ‘ :

Conclusion — Response accepted,

- II-B-09 Financial Reporting — During the audit, we identified material amounts of receivables,
payables and- capital asset additions not recorded in the County’s financial statements.
" Adjustments were subsequontly made by the County to properly include these amounts in
the financial statements.

'Recommendation — The County should implement procedures to ensure all receivables, -
payables and capital asset additions are identified and included in the County s financial
statements.

_Respons — Letters will be sent to department heads and d1scussmns w111 be held at
department head meetings to emphasize the need to monitor these items more closely.

Conclusion — Response accepted,
' II-C-09 Cash Receipts — The Conservation Department received funds from the State of Iowa in

March and April 2009 and did not remit them to the County Treasurer until September,
2009, :

: Reoommendatmn All money should be pa1d to the County Treasurer by June 30 of eaoh
year. _ .

Respons — Money will be tu:ned over to the County Treasurer upon rece1pt in the future.

Conclugion — Response .acoepted.

Part II1: Findings an_d nestioned Costs for Federal Awards:

_ INSTANCE OF NON-COMPLIANCE:

No matters were reported.
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Tama County
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Contmued)
Year_Ended June 30, 2009

Part IV. Other I‘mdlngs Related to Required Statutorg Reporting:

IV-A-09

Certlﬁed Budget — D1sbursements during the year ended June 30, 2009 d1d not exceed the
amounts budgeted. However, disburs ements ina department exceeded the amount appropriated.

Reoommendatlon Chapter 331 434(6) of the Code of Iowa authorizes the Board of Superwsors
by resolution to increase or decrease appropriations of one office or department by increasing or
decreasing the appropriation of another office or department as long as the function budget is not

- increased. Such increase or decreases should be made before d1sbursements are allowed {0 exceed

the appropriation,

Response — We will more closely monitor this in the .future.

IV-B-09

IV-C-09

Conclusion — Response accepted.

'Questionable Expenditures — We noted no expenditures that we believe may not meet the

requirements of publlie purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion Vdaterd April 25,1979.

Travel Exgens —No- expend1tures of County money for travel expenses of spouses of County
officials or employees were noted.

IV-D—09 Busmess Transactions — No business transaetlons between the County and County OfﬁCJ.alS or

IVE-09

IV-F-09

IV-G-09

IV-H-09

employees were noted

Bond Coverag Surety bond coverage of County officials and employees is in accordance with
statutory provisions. The amount of all‘bonds should be penodlcally reviewed to ensure the
coverage 1s adequate for current opera’uons

Board Mmutes ~No transactmns were found that we believe should have: been apploved in the
Board minutes but were not. : ,

Deposits and Investments — No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and fnvestment

provisions of Chapter 12B and 12C of the Code of Iowa and the County's mvestment policy were B ‘
noted. -

Resource Bnhancement and Protection Certification — TheCounty properly dedicated property tax
revenue to conservation purposes as required by Chapter 455A.19(1)(b) of the Code of Iowa in
order to receive the additional REAP funds alloeated in accordanoe with subsections (b)(2) and

(b)(3)-

IV-1-09 County Extension Office — The County Ext_ension Office is operated under the authority of Chapter

176 A of the Code of Towa and serves as an agency of the State of [owa. This fund is administered
by an Extension Council separate and d1st1nct from County. operations and, consequently is not
included in Exhibits A or B. ' :

Dlsbursements dunng the year ended June 30 2009 for the County Extension Office d1d not
exceed the amount budgeted. : .

65




" This andit was performed by: -

- Tama Cbunty_ _
- Audit Staff

Bowman :and Miller, P.C. e
Certified Public Accountants
. Marshalltown, Iowa

Petrsonnel:

Eii_zabeth A, Miller, CPA, i’rincipal'
Lori H. Stansbetry, CPA, Principal
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